
 Presque Isle City Council Meeting 
Wednesday, September 1st, 2021 

6:00 PM 
Sargent Family Community Center 

 
AGENDA 

 

Roll Call 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Public Hearing 
 

1. Approval of a Marijuana License to Chad Junkins d/b/a Northern Euphoria LLC, with location of 
11 Davis Street (Single Hearing) (TABLED) 

2. Approval for Special Permit for Music, Dancing and Entertainment for Stone Ridge Event 
Center, with location of 150 Maysville Road (Single Hearing) (TABLED) 

3. Approval for a Malt, Spirituous and Vinous Liquor License for Sodexo America, LLC, with a 
location of 181 Main Street (Single Hearing) 

4. Approval for a Special Permit for Music, Dancing and Entertainment for the University of Maine 
at Presque Isle, with location of 181 Main Street (Single Hearing) 

5. Approval of an Automobile Graveyard Permit for Paul Jalbert d/b/a Jalbert Auto & Salvage, 204 
Chapman Road (Single Hearing) (TABLED) 

6. Approval of an Automobile Graveyard Permit/Junkyard Permit for Cowett’s Used Auto Parts, 
d/b/a C.A.R. Parts, 75 Davis Street and 259 Fort Road (Single Hearing) 

Citizen Comments 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

7. Approve Minutes from July 15, 2021 and August 4, 2021 
8. Approve 2021 Warrants #28 - #31, totaling $1,725,073.67 
9. Approve Reappointment of Stephen Richard to Presque Isle Housing Authority (five-year term -

expires October 1, 2026) 
10. Approve Drug Forfeitures  

 

Old Business 
 

11. Appointment to Downtown TIF Advisory Committee 
12. City Hall Renovations Update 

 

New Business 
 

13. 2022 Budget Calendar 
14. Taxi Cab Report 
15. Schedule a Public Hearing to adopt updates to the following building standards: Chapter 31 

National Electrical Code and Chapter 38C Property Maintenance Code 
16. Schedule a Public Hearing for Dangerous Buildings  
17. Capital Improvement Plan 
18. Five Year Fee Schedule 

 

Manager’s Report 
 

Announcements 
 

Executive Session 
 

Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(C) to discuss Real Estate 
 

Adjournment 



 

  The Office of the City Manager 
Martin Puckett 

Email:  mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 
MEMORANDUM 

  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: August 25, 2021 

RE:  September 1st 6pm, Sargent Family Community Center 
 

Please note meeting is at Community Center 
Call to Order 
 
Public Hearing:  Some of the items below were not in compliance when this memo was 
drafted, leading to a staff recommendation to table items 1,2 & 5.  It is possible the issues 
noted may be corrected by the time of the meeting.  Staff will update during the public 
hearings. 

1. Approval of a Marijuana License to Chad Junkins d/b/a Northern Euphoria LLC, with 
location of 11 Davis Street (Single Hearing): Staff recommends to table until odor plan is 
in compliance.  If odor plan is implemented (filtration system installed by time of 
meeting) then staff would recommend approval.   

2. Approval for Special Permit for Music, Dancing and Entertainment for Stone Ridge 
Event Center, with location of 150 Maysville Road (Single Hearing):  Staff recommends 
to table at this time.  The State Fire Marshall Office has not permitted the building.  The 
State Fire Marshall would have to give approval prior to the City issuing a permit.   

3. Approval for a Malt, Spirituous and Vinous Liquor License for Sodexo America, LLC, 
with a location of 181 Main Street (Single Hearing): Staff recommends approval.  

4. Approval for a Special Permit for Music, Dancing and Entertainment for the University 
of Maine at Presque Isle, with location of 181 Main Street (Single Hearing): Staff 
recommends approval. 

5. Approval of an Automobile Graveyard Permit for Paul Jalbert d/b/a Jalbert Auto & 
Salvage, 204 Chapman Road (Single Hearing):  Staff recommends to table until property 
is in compliance (fencing needs to be installed). Once fence is installed, staff would 
recommend approval.   

6. Approval of an Automobile Graveyard Permit/Junkyard Permit for Cowett’s Used Auto 
Parts, d/b/a C.A.R. Parts, 75 Davis Street and 259 Fort Road (Single Hearing): Staff 
recommends approval. 

Citizen Comments 
 
Consent Agenda: Unless council wants to discuss items individually, staff recommends 
approving in one motion.   

7. Approve Minutes from July 15th and August 4, 2021 
8. Approve 2021 Warrants  



  
 

 
 

9. Approve Reappointment of Stephen Richard to Presque Isle Housing Authority (five-year 
term -expires October 1, 2026) 

10. Approve Drug Forfeitures:   
 
Old Business 

11. Appointment to Downtown TIF Advisory Committee: Staff recommends appointing as 
presented; City Finance Director – Brad Turner, City Economic Development Director – 
Galen Weibley, PI Downtown Revitalization Committee – Floyd Rockholt, Member-at-
Large: Sean Nordenhold.  Through a separate motion, council will also have to appoint 
one councilor that is interested to serve on the committee.    

12. City Hall Renovation Updates:  Committee members will provide updates on renovation 
progress.  A slide show of the pictures will be presented at the meeting. No action 
required. 
 

New Business 
13. 2022 Budget Calendar: We are starting the process a little earlier than usual.  The 

departments will be busy over the 30-45 days putting together their budgets.  We will be 
starting with the old budgeting software and transition to the new software.  The biggest 
change is starting a week earlier, to give council more time to review the budget prior to 
the workshop.  We will be going in order through the budget by department rather than 
flipping back and forth.  Please check your schedules to see if the dates work.  No action 
required.       

14. Taxi Cab Report: Two separate issues, one is about airport policies, the other is 
complaints against the taxi cabs. 

Scott Wardwell, Airport Director will discuss the two attached memos pertaining 
to policies to address a courtesy shuttle van and ride sharing services at the airport. 
Separate motions are included for each issue.   

A separate issue is about complaints we have received from users/businesses 
about the existing taxi cab companies.  The alleged complaints do violate portions of the 
Taxi Cab ordinance.  A certified letter was sent to the operators about the complaints.  
Per the ordinance, the PD has scheduled inspections, the last ones will be completed prior 
to the council meeting.  After reviewing the report from Officer White (presented at the 
meeting) council will decide if further action is needed and can schedule a public hearing 
based upon the findings in the report.   

15. Schedule a Public Hearing to adopt updates to the following building standards: Chapter 
31 National Electrical Code and Chapter 38C Property Maintenance Code: Please see 
attached memo from DECD.  The majority of changes reflect the changes in the national 
standards from 2003 to 2012.   

16. Schedule a Public Hearing for Dangerous Buildings: Staff would like to hold a public 
hearing for 38 Elizabeth Street.  Pictures and memo attached.  

17. Capital Improvement Plan:  The CIP will be handed out during the meeting.  It will be 
presented in detail during the budget process.  Some departments are still modifying the 
document.  No action required. 

18. Five Year Fee Schedule:  For council review and discussion.  Will be detailed during the 
budget process.   

 



  
 

 
 

Manager’s Report 
 

Announcements 
 

Executive Session 
 

Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(C) to discuss Real Estate 
 
 

 
Adjournment 

 
 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 1 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: TABLED: Approval of a Marijuana License 
to Chad Junkins, d/b/a Northern Euphoria LLC, with location 

to 11 Davis Street (Single Hearing) 
 

INFORMATION 
 

1) Application 
2) Public Hearing Notice 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
 
TABLED: BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded 
by Councilor __________ to approve a Marijuana License to 
Chad Junkins, d/b/a Northern Euphoria LLC, with location to 
11 Davis Street. 







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE LEGAL NOTICE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City Council will be hold a 
PUBLIC HEARING on September 1, 2021 at 6:00 PM at the Mark & 
Emily Turner Memorial Library, to consider a Marijuana medical 
Cul�va�on License from:   

Chad Junkins
11 Davis St.

   

The public may a�end the public hearing or submit wri�en comments. 
You can obtain more informa�on by contac�ng the City Clerk’s Office at 
City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque Isle, ME 04769 or call at 760-2720. 

ADA ASSISTANCE: Anyone needing special assistance at the public 
hearing due to a disability should contact the City of Presque Isle’s City 
Clerk at 760-2720 at least two (2) business days prior to the mee�ng 
date. 

                                                                                            Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore

                                                                                                  City Clerk Published August 25, 2021



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 2 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: TABLED: Approval of a Special Permit for 
Music, Dancing and Entertainment for Stone Ridge Event 

Center, with location of 150 Maysville Road  
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) Application 
2) Statement of Deficiencies and Plan of Corrections 
3) Public Hearing Notice 

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
TABLED: BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded 
by Councilor __________ to approve a Special Permit for 
Music, Dancing and Entertainment for Stone Ridge Event 
Center, with location of 150 Maysville Road. 
 













Published August 25, 2021

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE LEGAL NOTICE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City Council will be hold 
a PUBLIC HEARING on September 1, 2021 at 6:00 PM at the Mark & 
Emily Turner Memorial Library, to consider a Special Permit for Music, 
Dancing and Entertainment from:   

StoneRidge event Center
150 Maysville Road

The public may a�end the public hearing or submit wri�en comments. 
You can obtain more informa�on by contac�ng the City Clerk’s Office 
at City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque Isle, ME 04769 or call at 
760-2720. 

ADA ASSISTANCE: Anyone needing special assistance at the public 
hearing due to a disability should contact the City of Presque Isle’s City 
Clerk at 760-2720 at least two (2) business days prior to the mee�ng 
date.

Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore

City Clerk 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 3 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: Special Permit for a Malt, Spirituous and 
Vinous Liquor License for Sodexo America, LLC, with location 

181 Main Street 
  

INFORMATION 
 
1) Application 
2) Public Hearing Notice 

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded by 
Councilor __________ to approve a Special Permit for 
Spirituous and Vinous Liquor License for Sodexo America, 
LLC, with location 181 Main Street. 





















Published August 25, 2021

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE LEGAL NOTICE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City Council will be hold 
a PUBLIC HEARING on September 1, 2021 at 6:00 PM at the Mark & 
Emily Turner Memorial Library, to consider a Malt, Spirituous and 
Vinous Liquor License from:

Sodexo America, LLC d/b/a University of Maine at Presque Isle
181 Main St.

The public may a�end the public hearing or submit wri�en 
comments. You can obtain more informa�on by contac�ng the City 
Clerk’s Office at City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque Isle, ME 04769 or 
call at 760-2720.

ADA ASSISTANCE: Anyone needing special assistance at the public 
hearing due to a disability should contact the City of Presque Isle’s City 
Clerk at 760-2720 at least two (2) business days prior to the mee�ng 
date. 

Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore

City Clerk 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 4 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: Approval of a Special Permit for Music, 
Dancing and Entertainment for University of Maine at 

Presque Isle, with location of 181 Main Street  
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) Application 

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded by 
Councilor __________ to approve a Special Permit for Music, 
Dancing and Entertainment for University of Maine at 
Presque Isle, with location of 181 Main Street. 





Published August 25, 2021

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE LEGAL NOTICE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City Council will be hold 
a PUBLIC HEARING on September 1, 2021 at 6:00 PM at the Mark & 
Emily Turner Memorial Library, to consider a Special Permit for 
Music, Dancing and Entertainment from:   

University of Maine Presque Isle
181 Main Street

The public may a�end the public hearing or submit wri�en 
comments. You can obtain more informa�on by contac�ng the City 
Clerk’s Office at City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque Isle, ME 04769 or 
call at 760-2720.

ADA ASSISTANCE: Anyone needing special assistance at the public 
hearing due to a disability should contact the City of Presque Isle’s 
City Clerk at 760-2720 at least two (2) business days prior to the 
mee�ng date.

Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore

City Clerk 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 5 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: TABLED: Special Permit for Automobile 
Graveyard Permit for Paul Jalbert d/b/a Jalbert Auto & 

Salvage, 204 Chapman Road    
  

INFORMATION 
 
1) Application  
2) Public Hearing Notice 

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
 
TABLED: BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded 
by Councilor __________ to approve a Special Permit for 
Automobile Graveyard Permit for Paul Jalbert d/b/a Jalbert 
Auto & Salvage, 204 Chapman Road. 







Published August 25, 2021

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE LEGAL NOTICE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City Council will be 
hold a PUBLIC HEARING on September 1, 2021 at 6:00 PM at the 
Mark & Emily Turner Memorial Library, to consider an Automobile 
Graveyard permit/Junkyard Permit from:

Paul Jalbert d/b/a Jalbert Auto & Salvage
204 Chapman Road.

The public may a�end the public hearing or submit wri�en 
comments. You can obtain more informa�on by contac�ng the City 
Clerk’s Office at City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque Isle, ME 04769 
or call at 760-2720. 

ADA ASSISTANCE: Anyone needing special assistance at the public 
hearing due to a disability should contact the City of Presque Isle’s 
City Clerk at 760-2720 at least two (2) business days prior to the 
mee�ng date. 

Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore

City Clerk 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 6 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: Special Permit for Automobile 
Graveyard/Junkyard Permit for Cowett’s Used Auto Parts, 

d/b/a C.A.R. Parts 75 Davis Street and 259 Fort Road    
  

INFORMATION 
 
1) Application 
2) Public Hearing Notice 

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded by 
Councilor __________ to approve a Special Permit for 
Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard Permit for Cowett’s Used 
Auto Parts, d/b/a C.A.R. Parts 75 Davis Street and 259 Fort 
Road. 







Published August 25, 2021

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE LEGAL NOTICE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City Council will be 
hold a PUBLIC HEARING on September 1, 2021 at 6:00 PM at the 
Mark & Emily Turner Memorial Library, to consider an Automobile 
Graveyard permit/Junkyard Permit from:

Paul Jalbert d/b/a Jalbert Auto & Salvage
204 Chapman Road.

The public may a�end the public hearing or submit wri�en 
comments. You can obtain more informa�on by contac�ng the City 
Clerk’s Office at City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque Isle, ME 04769 
or call at 760-2720. 

ADA ASSISTANCE: Anyone needing special assistance at the public 
hearing due to a disability should contact the City of Presque Isle’s 
City Clerk at 760-2720 at least two (2) business days prior to the 
mee�ng date. 

Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore

City Clerk 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 7 
 

SUBJECT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 2021 Minutes 
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) July 15, 2021 Minutes 
2) August 4, 2021 Minutes 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to approve minutes from July 15th and August 4th, 
2021. 



 

City of Presque Isle, 
Maine 

City Council & Planning Board Minutes 
 

 City of Presque Isle, 12 Second Street, Presque Isle, Maine 04769 
Administrative Staff: 

Galen Weibley, Director Tel: (207)-760-2727, E-mail: gweibley@presqueisleme.us 
George Howe, Tel:  (207) 760-2770, E-mail: ghowe@presqueisleme.us 

                        Griffin St. Peter, Tel:  (207) 760-2770, E-mail: gstpeter@presqueisleme.us 
                  Penny Anderson, Tel:  (207) 760-2703, E-mail:  panderson@presqueisleme.us 

FAX:  (207) 764-2501 
 

 

Presque Isle Library – Akeley Gallery 
July 15, 2021 @ 6:00 PM 

 
Planning Board Members Present: Bruce Roope, Chairman; Ward Gerow, Vice-Chairman; Jayne 
Farrin, Brandon McDonald, Sean Nordenhold, Travis Ouellette (Arrived at 6:04 PM), & David Perry 
 
City Councilors Present: Kevin Freeman, Chairman; Jacob Shaw, Deputy Chairman; Mike Chasse, 
Doug Cyr (Arrived at 6:02 PM), Craig Green  

 
Councilors Absent: Randy Smith 

 
Others Present: Galen Weibley, Director of Economic & Community Development; George Howe, 
Code Enforcement Officer; Martin Puckett, City Manager; Clint Deschene, IgnitePI; twenty-six 
residents in the audience 

 
1. Call to Order of regular meeting. 

 
Chairman Roope called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

 
2. Minutes Approval:  Review and approve draft minutes from June 15, 2021. 

 
A motion by Jayne Farrin, second by Brandon McDonald to approve the June 15, 2021 
Planning Board Meeting Minutes. Vote – unanimous 6-0 
Councilor Cyr and Mr. Ouellette arrived to join the meeting 

 
3. Letter of Compliance for IgnitePI: Authorize a letter of support by the Planning Board for 

IgnitePI’s CDBG project 
 

Galen Weibley briefed the board regarding the Community Development Block Grant requirement 
that states the Planning Board must authorize a letter of support for the project so the state may 
release funds for the project and insure the funds will not conflict with the comprehensive plan. 
This is a similar request like last month’s request from the City. Mr. Clint Deschene, Director of 
Community Innovation for IgnitePI addressed the Board and shared project updates. 

mailto:gweibley@presqueisleme.us
mailto:ghowe@presqueisleme.us
mailto:gstpeter@presqueisleme.us
mailto:panderson@presqueisleme.us


Planning Board Minutes 
July 15, 2021 
2 | P a g e  
 

(Item Three Continued) 
 
A motion by Ward Gerow, and second by Sean Nordenhold to authorize the Board Chairman to 
sign a letter drafted by staff in support of IgnirePI’s proposed CDBG project. Vote- unanimous 6-
0 with Brandon McDonald abstaining for conflict of interest for his place of employment 
which is financially backing the project.  
 
 

4. Planning Board Public Hearing to Consider Residential Rental Registration Ordinance:  Listen to 
public comment on draft residential rental ordinance as submitted in the 2021 City Rental Housing 
Report.  
 
Mr. Weibley presented the draft language to the Planning Board and provided a broad overview of 
the ordinance, registration process and application form. The Planning Board members did not 
have any questions before opening the floor for the public hearing. 
 
A motion was made by Brandon McDonald and second by Ward Gerow to open the meeting for 
public comment on the ordinance. Vote – unanimous 7-0. 
 
Mr. Weibley informed the board that the city received written feedback from John Harvell, Glen 
& Ann Braley, Isaac & Kristina Braley, and Mikayla Churchill against the proposed ordinance. 
The City also received letters of support from Fire Chief Darrell White & Code Officer for the 
City of Caribou Ken Murchison.  
 
Attorney Jeff Ashby residing at 40 Dyer Street spoke on behalf of clients against the ordinance 
stating it was intrusive to landlords and cited concerns with public disclosure and privacy 
concerns. Mr. Ashby also mentioned the state laws already weigh in favor of tenants over 
landlords in issues of fixing problems with the property. He submitted to the Board and Council 
written remarks to be made part of the public record. 
 
Attorney Matt Dyer residing at 373 Houlton Road in Easton an attorney for Pine Tree Legal 
located at 373 Main Street addressed the board as a former member of the Rental Housing 
Working Group and shared his support for the proposed ordinance in its draft form as a proactive 
tool to address rental conditions in Presque Isle. Mr. Dyer was active in housing issues in 
Lewiston before moving to Aroostook County and believes if a similar ordinance was passed by 
Lewiston decades ago, it would have saved the community from the costs they are fixing now. 
 
Kevin Thorstenson residing at 33 Academy Street addressed the board as an insurance broker by 
trade with his written comments and stating his opposition to the proposed ordinance as unneeded 
and wrong from the start. The proposed ordinance would hinder the landlord’s operations costing 
them money and potentially raising the rents of tenants.  
 
Gary Nelson residing at 66 Lakeshore Drive addressed the board in opposition to the proposed 
ordinance. He currently owns 205 Main Street and shared a store with a fire on the property that 
was caused by cigarette butts by the tenant’s poor butt container. He mentions this story since he 
was told by the Fire Department that the fire originated as an electrical fire which is false. Mr. 
Nelson believes this ordinance is not needed and is punishing good landlords. 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 15, 2021 
3 | P a g e  
 

Leigh Smith residing at 56 Canterbury Street and a realtor by trade that manages 70 units within 
the City addressed the board in opposition to the ordinance. He fields 15-25 calls a week for 
people looking for housing and believes if this ordinance is adopted, more rental units will go into 
the underground.  Mr. Smith mentioned landlords have a hard-enough time getting by with 
regulations that favor tenants and believes the City is doing enough to address the code concerns 
within the City. Mr. Smith also stated he is not in favor of additional Code officers for the City.  
 
Attorney Adam Swanson representing clients in the City with an office located at 487 Main Street 
stated his opposition to the ordinance for a variety of reasons. Mr. Swanson mentioned the 
provision of a landlord being available 24/7 as overbearing. Additionally, Mr. Swanson echoed 
Attorney Ashby’s comments that enough state laws are on the books to address this issue. Mr. 
Swanson stated there are Forth Amendment concerns with tenant information potentially being 
open for public record. Mr. Swanson ended his comments by mentioning incentive programs 
being better than more regulations.  
 
Amy Collins residing at Portage Lake spoke in opposition to the proposed ordinance stating that 
she has spent a lot of money on her property at the corner of State & Main Streets. She believes 
landlords are not treated fairly through the eviction process and that this ordinance will conflict 
with their scheduled maintenance projects for the property if they receive a punch card that differs 
from what improvements they would like to make. Ms. Collins mentioned that landlords in this 
room take great pride in their buildings. 
 
Chairman Roope closed the public hearing after receiving no more public comment. Before 
questions are asked by the Planning Board a motion was required.  
 
On a motion by Brandon McDonald, and second by Sean Nordenhold, to deny the residential 
rental registration ordinance as submitted.  
 
Mr. McDonald explained his rationale for the ordinance as a member of the working group that 
reviewed this topic. After hearing testimony tonight though, he decided this ordinance may need 
more work. Mr. Nordenhold was not aware that there was not more representation from landlords 
on the working group and believes more input is needed. Ward Gerow stated he sees the value for 
the ordinance but what is the alternative to doing nothing? Chairman Roope mention something 
needs to change to address poor property conditions in the community before major fires impact 
children. Chairman Roope also mentioned the issues facing housing in the city and desire to 
continue to the conversation of improving housing stock and safety in Presque Isle. Members of 
the public interjected during the planning board discussion which prompted Jayne Farrin to point 
the question for a vote if no other members wish to comment.  
 
Vote – unanimous 7-0 
 
Before Chairman Roope recessed the meeting at 7:45 PM, a poll of attendees agreed that the issue 
of housing should be explored by the City. The meeting was then recessed for the transition to the 
City Councilors public hearing.  
 
 
 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 15, 2021 
4 | P a g e  
 

 
5. City Council Public Hearing to Consider Residential Rental Registration Ordinance:  Listen to 

public comment on draft residential rental ordinance as submitted in the 2021 City Rental Housing 
Report.  
 
Chairman Kevin Freeman of the City Council reconvened the meeting at 7:57 PM and led in the 
pledge of allegiance. Roll call was taken with six out of seven councilors present.  
 
City Manager Martin Puckett briefed the Council with the history of the working group and 
proposed ordinance before them.  Mr. Weibley shared the intent of the ordinance was to aid the 
City in obtaining accurate data regarding the current rental housing stock in Presque Isle for 
additional state and federal funds to help in redevelopment opportunities for the landlords of 
Presque Isle.  
 
Attorney Adam Swanson returned to state that he was not being paid to be here tonight and 
believes the best alternative for the City to explore is an incentive-based program. Similar echoes 
in support for incentives were made by Kevin Thorstenson, Gary Nelson and Amy Collins.  
 
Elise Siakis a new resident and tenant in the City expressed gratitude for the City to explore this 
measure and voice that more tenant representation is in future conversations of changing the 
ordinance language.  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS:  
 
Councilor Chasse departed at this time for an emergency. 
  
A motion was made by Councilor Green and second by Councilor Shaw to table action on the 
draft Rental Registration Ordinance until the Council’s January 4, 2022 meeting. Vote – 
unanimous 5-0.  

 
6. Adjournment 

 
A motion by Councilor Green, second by Councilor Shaw to adjourn. Vote – unanimous 5-0. 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
 
 
Galen Weibley 

 
 
 

 

Planning Board Members 
Bruce Roope, Chair, Ward Gerow, Vice-Chair  

Jayne Farrin, Dave Perry, Brandon McDonald,  
Sean Nordenhold & Travis Ouellette 













PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM # 8 
 

 

SUBJECT 
 

 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 2021 Warrants #28 - #31, totaling 

$ 1,725,073.67 
 
 

 

INFORMATION 
 

 
1) Warrant #28 $ 636,426.38 
2) Warrant #29 $ 184,116.81 
3) Warrant #30 $ 173,476.71 
4) Warrant #31 $ 731,053.77 

  

 
 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to approve 2021 Warrants #28 - #31, totaling 
$1,725,073.67. 
 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 

SUBJECT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: Approve Appointment to PI Housing 
Authority 

 
INFORMATION 

 
1) PI Housing Authority Recommendation 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to appoint Stephen Richard to the Presque Isle 
Housing Authority (five-year term – expires October 1, 2026). 





PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 

SUBJECT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: Approve Drug Forfeitures 
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) Transfer Agreements 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to authorize Chairperson, Kevin Freeman to sign the 
Approval of Transfers. 



 
 

STATE OF MAINE UNIFIED CRIMINAL COURT 
AROOSTOOK, ss. LOCATION: PRESQUE ISLE 
 DOCKET: AROCD-CR-2020-40021 
   
 
 
STATE OF MAINE, ) 
  )   
 v. )  APPROVAL OF TRANSFER  
  ) 
ARES RATTRAY, ) 
 Defendant, ) 
  ) 
$875.00 IN U.S. CURRENCY, ) 
 Defendant In Rem. ) 
 
 

NOW COMES the City of Presque Isle, by and through the Presque Isle City 

Council, and does hereby grant written consent pursuant to 15 M.R.S. §§ 5824(2) & 

5826(8)(A) to transfer the above-captioned $875.00 in U.S. Currency, or any smaller 

portion thereof, to the City of Presque Isle (Presque Isle Police Department) in that such 

did make a substantial contribution to the investigation or prosecution of this criminal case. 

 
 
DATED:  _________________    ___________________________ 

Chairperson 
Presque Isle City Council 
 
 
       (Impress Seal Here) 

 

 



 
 

STATE OF MAINE UNIFIED CRIMINAL COURT 
AROOSTOOK, ss. LOCATION: PRESQUE ISLE 
 DOCKET: AROCD-CR-2019-40799 
   
 
 
STATE OF MAINE, ) 
  )   
 v. )  APPROVAL OF TRANSFER  
  ) 
JEFFREY L. LAUSIER, ) 
 Defendant, ) 
  ) 
$5956.84 IN U.S. CURRENCY, ) 
 Defendant In Rem. ) 
 
 

NOW COMES the City of Presque Isle, by and through the Presque Isle City 

Council, and does hereby grant written consent pursuant to 15 M.R.S. §§ 5824(2) & 

5826(8)(A) to transfer the above-captioned $5956.84 in U.S. Currency, or any smaller 

portion thereof, to the City of Presque Isle (Presque Isle Police Department) in that such 

did make a substantial contribution to the investigation or prosecution of this criminal case. 

 
 
DATED:  _________________    ___________________________ 

Chairperson 
Presque Isle City Council 
 
 
       (Impress Seal Here) 

 

 



 
 

STATE OF MAINE UNIFIED CRIMINAL COURT 
AROOSTOOK, ss. LOCATION: PRESQUE ISLE 
 DOCKET: AROCD-CR-2020-40024 
   
 
 
STATE OF MAINE, ) 
  )   
 v. )  APPROVAL OF TRANSFER  
  ) 
KILEY PELLETIER, ) 
 Defendant, ) 
  ) 
$5000.00 IN U.S. CURRENCY, ) 
 Defendant In Rem. ) 
 
 

NOW COMES the City of Presque Isle, by and through the Presque Isle City 

Council, and does hereby grant written consent pursuant to 15 M.R.S. §§ 5824(2) & 

5826(8)(A) to transfer the above-captioned $5000.00 in U.S. Currency, or any smaller 

portion thereof, to the City of Presque Isle (Presque Isle Police Department) in that such 

did make a substantial contribution to the investigation or prosecution of this criminal case. 

 
 
DATED:  _________________    ___________________________ 

Chairperson 
Presque Isle City Council 
 
 
       (Impress Seal Here) 

 

 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 

SUBJECT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: Approve Appointment to Downtown TIF 
Advisory Committee 

 
INFORMATION 

 
1) Memo from Galen Weibley, dated August 23, 2021 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to appoint the provided list of people given and 
Councilor                 to the Downtown TIF Advisory 
Committee. 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street            Presque Isle, ME 04769-2459            Phone: 207.760.2727               Fax 207.764.2501  
 

The City of Presque Isle is an equal opportunity provider. To file a complaint, write to  
HR Manager, 12 Second Street Presque Isle, ME 04769, or call (207) 760-2700. 

The Office of 
Director of Economic & Community Development 

Galen Weibley 
Email:  gweibley@presqueisleme.us 

 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Members of the Presque Isle City Council  
Martin Puckett-City Manager, 
 Kim Finnemore-City Clerk  
Chelsea Stratton-Executive Assistant to City Manager 

FROM: Galen Weibley, Director of Economic & Community Development 

DATE: August 23, 2021 

RE:  Appointment of Downtown TIF District Advisory Committee 

 
With passage of the Downtown TIF Policy, the Council is directed to establish a Downtown TIF 
Advisory Committee. This Committee is composed of City residents and staff to help vet development 
projects wanting City assistance and to proposed public projects to the Council. Below are the list of 
names recommended for approval: 
 

• City Finance Director – Brad Turner 
• City Economic Development Director – Galen Weibley 
• PI Downtown Revitalization Committee – Floyd Rockholt 
• Member-at-Large: Sean Nordenhold 

 
The last member of the committee is a representative from the City Councilor. After deliberations, the 
following motion is suggested with the addition of the Councilor to be appointed. 
 
Suggested motion: Mr. Chair, I move that we appoint the above referenced names to the 
Downtown TIF Advisory Committee with the addition of Councilor __________________ for a 
one-year term.  
 
 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 

SUBJECT 
 

OLD BUSINESS: City Hall Renovations Update 
 

INFORMATION 
 

1) PowerPoint Presentation – PROVIDED AT MEETING 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Discussion only. 
 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 2022 Budget Calendar 
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) 2022 Budget Calendar 

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
 
Discussion only. 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 

12 Second Street            Presque Isle, ME 04769-2459            Phone: 207.760.2700               Fax 207.764.2501  
 

The City of Presque Isle is an equal opportunity provider. To file a complaint, write to  
Martin Puckett, City Manager, 12 Second Street Presque Isle, ME 04769, or call (207) 760-2700. 

The Office of City Manager 
Martin Puckett 

Email:  mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: August 26, 2021 

RE:  2022 Budget Calendar 

 
Date Tim

e 
Day Item Location Department (Accnt #) 

9/29 6:00
pm 

WED Council 
Meeting 

SFCC Budget Overview 
1st public hearing  

10/12 5:15 
-

7:15
pm 

TUE Budget 
Workshop 

SFCC  15 mins Lewis – Assessing (1) (Pages -) 
15 mins Galen – Economic & Community Dev. (2) (Pages -) 
15 mins Brad - Finance (3) (Pages  - ) 
30 mins Darrell - FD(4) (Pages  - ) 
15 mins Martin - Gen. Gov. (6)  
30 mins Sonja - Library(7) (Pages  - ) 

10/13 5:15 
-

7:15
pm 

WED Budget 
Workshop 

SFCC  30 mins Laurie - PD(8) (Pages -) 
15 mins Dana - PW(9) (Pages -) 
30 mins Gene – Rec & Parks (10) 
15 mins Dana - SW(12) (Pages -) 
30 mins Tom – Industrial Council (13), (Pages -) 

10/14 5:15 
-

7:15
pm 

THU Budget 
Workshop 

SFCC 15 mins Laurie PS Building(15) (Pages -) 
15 mins Dana - Utilities(17), (Pages -) 
30 mins various - Debt(18) (Pages -) 
15 mins Galen - Echo Lake(19) (Pages -) 
15 mins Martin/Eric - IT(23) (Pages  - ) 
15 mins Kim - City Clerk(25) (Pages  - ) 
15 mins Kim - Gen Assistance (26) (Pages  - ) 

11/3 6:00
pm 

WED Council 
Meeting 

SFCC 2nd public hearing  
Unclassified (20) (Pages -) 

Outside Requests (21) (Pages -) 
11/4 5:15

pm 
THU Budget 

Workshop 
SFCC  30 mins Scott - Airport (33) (Pages -) 

5 mins Martin - Resource mngt(11), 
15 mins Martin - Employee Benefits (14) 
15 min Insurance(16), (Pages -) 
 

11/18 5:15
pm 

THU Budget 
Workshop 

SFCC  Budget Review 
Tentative dates to receive insurance rates 

 
12/1 6:00

pm 
WED Council 

meeting 
SFCC  



12/2 5:15
pm 

THU Tentative 
budget 

workshop 

SFCC TBD 

12/8 5:15
pm 

WED  Tentative 
budget 

workshop 

SFCC TBD 

12/13 5:15
pm 

MON Tentative 
budget 

workshop 

SFCC TBD 

12/31 Final date allowed by charter for budget adoption 

 
 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Taxi Cab Report 
 

INFORMATION 
 

1) Memo from Scott Wardwell, dated August 25, 2021 
2) Memo from Scott Wardwell, dated August 25, 2021 
3) Courtesy Vehicle Agreement 
4) Memo from Martin Puckett, dated August 25, 2021 
5) Taxi Cab Ordinance 
6) Complaint Letter 
7) Taxi Cab Report – PROVIDED AT MEETING 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              that the City Council authorize the Airport Director 
to enforce all regulations applying general public on Ride 
Hailing type services. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              that the City Council authorize the Airport Director 
to sign the Courtesy Vehicle Agreement with the Presque 
Isle Inn and Convention Center. 



















 
 

  The Office of the City Manager 
Martin Puckett 

Email:  mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 
MEMORANDUM 

  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: August 25, 2021 

RE:  Taxi Cab Complaints 
 
 
We have received complaints about the taxi operators within Presque Isle.  The Presque 
Isle Police Department is the entity to investigate the complaints.  Officer White will have 
a report available at the meeting based upon the inspection he has completed for the four 
different licensed taxi cabs.   
Based on the PIPD’s findings, the council may decide to hold a public hearing with the 
operators to allow them to respond to the allegations and findings.  Prior to 
suspension/revocation the companies must be given ten days’ notice prior to council’s 
action and have opportunity to be heard.   
 
The purpose for the meeting tonight is to review the complaints and PIPD’s report and 
determine you want to hold a future meeting to assess fines, suspension or revocation. 
 
The complaints include: 

1. Not adhering to rate structure 
2. Not answering/not returning 

calls for service 
3. Smoking in the vehicle 
4. Vehicles have bald tires 

5. Unsanitary Vehicles 
6. Animal Excrement inside of 

vehicle 
7. Delayed response calls 

 
 
I wanted to respond to each complaint according to our ordinance and about recourse 
for violations.   
 
Complaints 
Complaint #1 Rate Structure:   
Section 12 of the ordinance establishes rates for the taxi service.  The base fee is for the 
urban compact area and transportation to/from the airport.  The formula was 
established in 2005: ($5.50 multiplied by current IRS Mileage Rate of .56/.405) = $7.60.  
The are charges of $1.50 for additional passengers over 10 years old, waiting time (.35 
per minute), more than two bags (.75), large luggage (trunks $1.00), and stops along the 
way to hotel ($1.00).   



 
 

Trips for one person with two bags or less, directly from the airport to a hotel within the 
urban compact area should be $7.60.   
 
Complaint #2 Not answering calls for service and #7 Delayed Response Calls:  
Section 10 states:  
Holders of an operator’s license shall answer all calls received by them for services inside the 
corporate limits of the City as soon as they can do so and if services cannot be rendered within 
reasonable time they shall then notify the prospective passengers how long it will be before the 
call can be answered and give the reason therefor.   
Any holder of an operator’s license who shall refuse to accept a call during business hours 
anywhere in the corporate limits of the City at any time when such holder has available 
taxicabs, or who shall fail or refuse to give service during business hours shall be deemed a 
violator of this section and the license granted to such holder may be revoked at the discretion 
of the Council. 
While it does not state they have to provide transportation; they must answer all calls 
for service.  There is no definition of “business hours.” This may be an item for council 
to consider defining.   
 
Complaint #3 Smoking in the Taxi:  
State Statute:  
§1542. Smoking prohibited in public places 
1.  Prohibition.  Smoking is prohibited in all enclosed areas of public places, outdoor 
eating areas as provided in section 1550 and all rest rooms made available to the public. 
In the case of a child care facility that is not home-based, smoking is also prohibited in a 
facility-designated motor vehicle within 12 hours before transporting a child who is in 
the care of the child care facility, and whenever such a child is present in the vehicle. 
Smoking is also prohibited in outdoor areas of the facility where children may be 
present.   
Smoking should not occur in taxis, they are considered a workplace and a public space 
and can lead to civil fines of $100 to $1,500 under 22 M.R.S. §1580-A. 
 
Complaint #4 Bald Tires & #5 & #6 Unsanitary Vehicles 
Section 13 Equipment A. Taxicabs shall be at all times clean and in good repair inside and out 
and shall be maintained at all times in compliance with the laws of the state relating to 
passenger vehicle and the rules and regulations of the State Commissioner of Transportation 
enacted pursuant thereto. 
Taxicabs shall be inspected and must pass inspection by a State of Maine Certified Inspection 
Station three (3) times per year, during the months of January, May and September. 
Bald tires are not in compliance with state inspection requirements. Taxis must be kept 
clean at all times.   
 
Suspension or Revocations 

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/22/title22sec1550.html


 
 

Section 9 & 21 does have language that applies to these allegations that could be 
grounds for suspension or revocation, with prior notification and opportunity to be 
heard: 
 
4. Drove a taxicab when not clean and neat in appearance; 
 
5. Refused to transport any orderly person upon request unless, in the case of a single taxicab 
business the taxicab is engaged, or in the case of a taxicab business operating more than one 
taxicab, all taxicabs operated by such business and then in service are engaged (if no taxicab is 
available at the time when a request for taxicab service is telephoned to a dispatch service, the 
dispatch service shall arrange with the caller for transportation by the next available taxicab 
using such dispatch service unless the caller expressly declines to make such arrangement) 
 
7. Charged more than the maximum fare specified on the rate card displayed in the taxicab; 
 
Section 9 Suspension, Revocation of License; Hearing 
An operator’s license issued under the provisions of this chapter may be revoked or suspended 
by the Council if the holder thereof has: A. Violated any of the provisions of this chapter; B. 
Discontinued operations for more than sixty (60) days without due cause; C. Has violated any 
Ordinance of the City or the laws of the United States or of the State of Maine, the violations of 
which reflect unfavorably on the fitness of the holder to offer public transportation. Prior to 
suspension or revocation, the holder shall be given ten (10) days notice of the proposed action 
to be taken and shall have an opportunity to be heard. 
 
 
Penalties  
The council also has the ability to fine the operators under the provisions of the 
ordinance: 
Taxis found to have violated any provision of this chapter, taxicab operators may be 
fined up to $500.00 and taxicab drivers may be fined up to $50.00 for any violations of 
this chapter or may also be charged criminally or civilly for any violations of this 
chapter that also constitute a violation of State law, but not both. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Pictures taken from a passenger that recently used Aroostook Cab, showing sipes 
(grooving perpendicular to the tire) are completely warn off the shoulder.  The tread 
block tread is barely discernable from the channels. Following pictures show stains, 
gravel and debris from the interior of the Buick.



 
 

 
 

  



 

 

 

CHAPTER 12 
 

CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE 
 

Taxicab Ordinance 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Approved by the City Council:  May 20, 1991 
 
Amended Section 12: Rates by the City Council:  June 3, 1996 
Amended Section 12:Rates by the City Council:  December 4, 2000 
Amended Section 12:Rates and Section 23: Rate Schedule by the City Council:  May 3, 2004 
Amended Section 12 Rates by the City Council:  October 17, 2005 
Amended Section 6: Indemnity Insurance Required: March 3, 2008 
Amended Section 12: Rates by the City Council:  March 3, 2008 
Amended Section 12: Rates and Section 23: Rate Schedule by the City Council: June 6, 2011 
Amended Section 22: Fee Schedule and Section 24: Penalties by the City Council:  March 7, 2016 
Repassed by the City Council: January 4, 2016 
Repassed by the City Council: January 8, 2020 
 
Attest:  __________________________ 

  Thomas C. King, City Clerk 
 

      

 



Chapter 12 – Taxicab Ordinance 
Page 1 

 

CHAPTER 12 
 

TAXICABS 
 

Section 1  Definitions 

The following words and phrases when used in this chapter shall have the following meanings: 

A. Driver’s License:  means the permission granted by the Council to drive a taxicab upon the 
streets and roadways of the City, provided the person possesses a valid Maine Drivers 
License. 

B. Licensed Inspector:  means and includes any person designated by the Clerk to perform 
inspections of taxicabs. 

C. License to operate:  means the license issued by the Council authorizing a person to operate 
a taxicab business in the City. 

D. Limousine:  means and includes any motor vehicle except a taxicab, used for the 
transportation of passengers for hire for special events and by appointment. 

E. Person:  Includes an individual, corporation, partnership or other business association. 

F. Rate Card:  means a card issued by the City Clerk for display in each taxicab which boldly 
shows the rates then in force. 

G. Revocation:  means a suspension of the right to conduct business or drive a taxicab for a 
period that exceeds one year. 

H. Suspension:  means taking away the right to conduct business or drive a taxicab that does not 
exceed one year. 

I. Taxicab:  means a motor vehicle regularly engaged in the business of carrying passengers for 
hire, having a seating capacity of not less than four (4) persons and not operated on a fixed 
route. 

J. Taxicab Operator:  means a person engaged in the business of employing drivers and taxicabs 
for transporting passengers for hire. 

K. Waiting Time:  means the time when a taxicab is not in motion from the time of acceptance of 
a passenger to the time of discharge, but does not include any time that the taxicab is not in 
motion if due to any cause other than the request, act, or fault of the passenger. 

 

Section 2  Police Department to Report Violations to Council 

The Police Department is hereby given the authority and is instructed to watch and observe the 
conduct of operators and drivers operating under this chapter. 

 

Upon discovering a violation of the provisions of this chapter, the Police Department shall report 
the same to the Council which will order or take appropriate action. 



Chapter 12 – Taxicab Ordinance 
Page 2 

 

Section 3  Operator’s License Required 

No person shall operate or permit a taxicab owned or controlled by him to be operated as a vehicle 
for hire upon the streets of the City without having first obtained a license from the Council. 

 

Section 4  Application for License to be Filed; Information Desired 

An application for a taxicab operator license required by Section 3 shall be filed with the City Clerk 
upon forms provided by the City and such application shall be verified under oath and shall furnish 
the following information: 

A. The name and address of the applicant 

B. Evidence of ability to secure bond or insurance  

C. The experience of the applicant in the transportation of passengers 

D. The number of vehicles to be operated or controlled by the applicant 

E. Such further information as the Council may require 

 

Section 5  Issuance of License 

If the Council finds that an applicant is fit, willing and able to perform such public transportation, 
and to conform to the provisions of this chapter and the rules promulgated by the Council, then the 
City Clerk shall issue an operator’s license stating the name and address of the applicant, the number 
of vehicles authorized under the license and the date of issuance, otherwise the application shall be 
denied. 

 

All licenses covered by this chapter shall expire on the first (1st) day of May of each year, except if 
the first (1st) shall fall on a weekend or a holiday the license will expire on the next regular business 
day. 

 

Section 6  Indemnity Insurance Required 

No operator’s license required by Section 3 shall be issued or continued in operation unless there is 
in full force and effect vehicle insurance in such form and amount of coverage per applicable State 
law and/or regulation.   

 

Said insurance, shall inure to the benefit of any person who shall be injured or who shall sustain 
damage to property, proximately caused by the negligence of a taxi operator.  A copy of said 
insurance shall be filed with the City Clerk, with the City as a named insured. 

 

Section 7  Fees Prerequisite to Issuance to License 

No operator’s license provided under this chapter shall be issued or continued in operation unless 
the holder thereof has paid an annual license fee required by Section 22 for the right to engage in the 
taxicab business and the required fee for each vehicle under a license. 

 

Said license fees shall be valid for one year and shall be in addition to any other license fees or 
charges established by proper authority and applicable to said taxicab operator or the vehicle or 
vehicles under his operation and control. 



Chapter 12 – Taxicab Ordinance 
Page 3 

 

Section 8  Transfer of Operator’s Licenses 

No operator’s license may be sold, assigned, mortgaged, or otherwise transferred. 

 

Section 9  Suspension, Revocation of License; Hearing 

An operator’s license issued under the provisions of this chapter may be revoked or suspended by 
the Council if the holder thereof has: 

A. Violated any of the provisions of this chapter; 

B. Discontinued operations for more than sixty (60) days without due cause; 

C. Has violated any Ordinance of the City or the laws of the United States or of the State of 
Maine, the violations of which reflect unfavorably on the fitness of the holder to offer public 
transportation. 

Prior to suspension or revocation, the holder shall be given ten (10) days notice of the proposed 
action to be taken and shall have an opportunity to be heard. 

 

Section 10  Duty to Provide Service; Penalty 

Holders of an operator’s license issued in accordance with this chapter shall maintain a central place 
of business for the purpose of receiving calls and dispatching cabs. 

 

Holders of an operator’s license shall answer all calls received by them for services inside the 
corporate limits of the City as soon as they can do so and if services cannot be rendered within 
reasonable time they shall then notify the prospective passengers how long it will be before the call 
can be answered and give the reason therefor. 

 

Any holder of an operator’s license who shall refuse to accept a call during business hours anywhere 
in the corporate limits of the City at any time when such holder has available taxicabs, or who shall 
fail or refuse to give service during business hours shall be deemed a violator of this section and the 
license granted to such holder may be revoked at the discretion of the Council. 

 

Section 11  Taxicabs to be Marked 

Taxicabs will be clearly marked as such.  Taxicab operators may employ a specific color scheme, 
identifying design, monogram or insignia. 

 

Each licensed taxicab shall have on the top and/or each side in letters readable from a distance of 
twenty (20) feet the name of the licensee or the dispatch controller for the purpose of receiving calls, 
as well as a designated number assigned by the City Clerk to be no smaller than three (3) inches to 
be placed on each side of each licensed vehicle, or on each side of the taxi sign on top of the vehicle. 

 

 

 

 

 



Chapter 12 – Taxicab Ordinance 
Page 4 

 

Section 12  Rates 

No taxicab operator or taxicab driver shall charge a sum for the use of a taxicab higher than that in 
accordance with the following rates: 

A. A base fee shall be set based on the formula found in Section (J) below for one and $1.50 for 
each additional person ten (10) years of age and over, from the same point of hire to the same 
destination, within the compact urban line, excluding the Airport.  An additional $1.00 per 
mile may be charged for trips outside the compact urban line. 

B. A fee may be charged for fares to and from the Airport, equal to the base fee, within the urban 
line or from any hotel or motel in the City. 

C. Trunks may be charged for at the rate of $1.00. 

D. Charges for waiting time may be $ .35 per minute or $20.00 per hour. 

E. Charge for errands may be $1.00 over the cost of fare. 

F. An additional fee of $1.00 may be charged for delivering groceries, parcels, etc. 

G. Children under ten (10) years of age accompanied by adults will be carried without charge. 

H. Taxicabs may be employed as sightseeing cabs at the rate of $20.00 per hour for the first hour 
and, for each quarter hour thereafter or fraction thereof, $5.00, provided, however, that no 
taxicab shall be engaged as a sightseeing cab for a shorter period than one hour. 

I. No charge shall be made for the transportation of the first two bags or parcels per passenger.  
A charge of $ .75 may be charged for more than two bags or parcels. 

J. The base fee shall be established based on the IRS allowable mileage rate.  Such rate shall be 
based on a ratio of the 6/2005 rate of $0.405 per mile equaling a base rate of $5.50, rounded 
down to the nearest $0.10.  To illustrate, at the 2011 IRS rate of $0.51, the base rate would be 
$6.90 ((5.50X0.51)/(0.405)=$6.92, rounded down to $6.90  

K. Passengers are under no obligation to pay the fare for any trip originating in the City and 
going outside the City or originating outside the City and coming inside the City unless the 
passenger and the driver have agreed upon an amount of the fare prior to the commencement 
of the trip. 

L. A rate card shall be issued by the City Clerk together with each taxicab license.  The rate card 
shall be clearly visible to the passenger at all times when the taxicab is in service.  The rate 
card shall also contain the following statement:  “If you have a complaint about the service 
you have received or the fare you have been charged, please call the Clerk of the City of 
Presque Isle at 760-2720.” 

M. Whenever the IRS rate for mileage changes, the maximum rate charged, according to this 
ordinance, shall automatically change on the effective date and upon notification by the City 
Clerk to all licensed operators within the City.  A public notice shall be placed according to 
the notification requirements of any ordinance changes; such cost shall be borne by the 
licensed operators. 

 

 

 

 



Chapter 12 – Taxicab Ordinance 
Page 5 

 

Section 13  Equipment 

A. Taxicabs shall be at all times clean and in good repair inside and out and shall be maintained 
at all times in compliance with the laws of the state relating to passenger vehicle and the rules 
and regulations of the State Commissioner of Transportation enacted pursuant thereto. 

 Taxicabs shall be inspected and must pass inspection by a State of Maine Certified Inspection 
Station three (3) times per year, during the months of January, May and September. 

B. Every taxicab shall be equipped with an exterior light affixed to the roof thereof which shall 
be covered with a translucent fixture marked with the work “Taxi” in legible lettering and 
which shall be operated during the period between sunset and sunrise, as long as the taxicab 
is in service. 

C. Every taxicab shall be conspicuously marked in letters not less than one and one-half (1 ½ ) 
inches in height with the word “Taxi” and the owner’s name or trade name, or, in lieu of such 
name or trade name, with a design or monogram containing the owner’s name or trade name.  
Such design or monogram shall be not less than eight (8) inches in diameter. 

 

Section 14  Display of License 

A taxicab driver shall display his or her taxicab driver’s license in a place within the cab which is 
clearly visible to passengers at all times when the cab is in service. 

 

Section 15  Ordering of Taxicab from Service 

The license inspector may require any licensee to present a taxicab for inspection whenever the 
inspector deems such inspection necessary and may in writing order a taxicab business licensee to 
remove from service any taxicab which is in violation of this chapter; provided that a reinspection 
shall be scheduled as soon as possible but in no case more than three (3) days thereafter.  There shall 
be a charge of $5.00 for the first reinspection, and a charge of $25.00 for each reinspection thereafter, 
of any taxicab ordered removed from service for any violation which is deemed by the license 
inspector to represent a serious threat to the health or safety of passengers.  Any licensee aggrieved 
by such an order may appeal at any time to the Clerk who shall as soon as possible, and in no case 
more then three (3) days thereafter determine whether such taxicab is in violation of this chapter and 
shall either affirm the order of the license inspector or give the licensee written permission to return 
the taxicab to service.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this section or chapter, the license of 
any licensee charged with operating a taxicab which the license inspector has ordered out of service 
shall be suspended in accordance with Section 9, and shall either be suspended or revoked upon a 
finding, after notice and hearing, that the violation has in fact been committed. 

 

Section 16  Required 

No person shall operate a taxicab within the City unless such taxicab and the driver thereof are 
currently licensed.  All licenses issued pursuant to this chapter shall be granted, denied, suspended 
or revoked by the Clerk, in accordance with the other provisions of this chapter.  A taxicab business 
license shall apply to one vehicle only. 

 

 



Chapter 12 – Taxicab Ordinance 
Page 6 

 

Section 17  Application 

A. Applications under this chapter shall be filed as follows: 

1. Taxicab operator’s licenses: 

a. Name(s) of the stockholders of the corporation will be submitted along with the 
application.  In all other cases by all persons having actual ownership interests 
in the applicant.  If the applicant is a corporation, the application shall state the 
name and the date and place of birth of each of the principal officers of the 
applicant and of every person having management authority in the business of 
the applicant.  In all other cases, the application shall state the name and address 
and the date and place of birth of every person having an actual ownership 
interest or having management authority in the business of the applicant. 

b. A record of any disqualifying criminal conviction or a statement that no such 
conviction exists shall be provided. 

c. A detailed description of the graphic design, insignia, wording and coloring 
which will appear upon the vehicle, if licensed, shall be included. 

d. The application shall contain an appropriate form of statement over the 
signature of each person signing the application, giving all persons and 
governmental agencies having information relevant to the above items 
permission to release the same to the Clerk. 

2. Taxicab drivers license.  The taxicab driver’s license application shall: 

a. State the age of the applicant; all applicants must be at least 18 years of age. 

b. Provide proof the applicant has a valid, active, Maine driver’s license. 

c. Contain a complete statement of the applicant’s health and physical condition 

d. Contain a complete record of the applicant with respect to any disqualifying 
criminal conviction or a statement that no such conviction exists 

e. Contain a record of convictions for reckless driving, driving to endanger, 
operating or attempting to operate under the influence during the year 
preceding the application; and 

f. State whether any driver’s license held by the applicant is presently revoked or 
has been revoked during the three (3) years preceding the application and the 
reasons for such revocation or revocations. 

B. The application shall contain an appropriate form of statement over the signature of the 
applicant giving all persons and governmental agencies having information relevant to 
the above items permission to release the same to the Clerk and shall be accompanied by 
two (2) photographs of the applicant of such size as the Clerk may specify. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Chapter 12 – Taxicab Ordinance 
Page 7 

 

Section 18  Standards for Denial 

In addition to those standards set forth in this chapter, a license under this section shall be denied to 
the following persons: 

A. Taxicab operator’s licenses: 

1. To a corporation which is not licensed to do business in the state; 

2. To an applicant other than the registered owner of the vehicle; 

3. To an corporation if any principal officer or stockholder thereof or any person 
having actual ownership interest therein has a disqualifying criminal conviction; 

4. To an applicant, other than a corporation, if such applicant or any person having 
an actual ownership interest or management authority therein has a disqualifying 
crimi-nal conviction; and 

5. To any applicant whose taxicab business license has been revoked within the three 
(3) years preceding the application. 

 

Section 19  Transfer 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, and in lieu of any other fee, a taxicab license 
may be transferred to another vehicle.  All additional fee of $5.00 will be charged for the transfer at 
the time the transfer is requested. 

 

Section 20  Automatic Revocation or Suspension 

No taxicab driver’s license shall be effective for the purposes of this chapter during any period in 
which the state driver’s license of the licensee is suspended or revoked. 

 

Section 21  Grounds for Suspension or Revocation 

A. Either License.  In addition to the grounds for suspension or revocation of licenses set forth 
in other sections of this chapter, either a taxicab operator’s license or a taxicab driver’s 
license may be suspended or revoked upon a determination that the licensee: 

1. Knowingly took a longer route to his or her destination than was necessary unless 
so requested by the passenger; 

2. Knowingly conveyed any passenger to a place other than that which the passenger 
specified; 

3. Transported any person other than the passenger first engaging the taxicab without 
the express consent of such passenger; 

4. Drove a taxicab when not clean and neat in appearance; 

5. Failed to remain in the driver’s compartment of the taxicab at all times that the 
taxicab was in service or was waiting to be hired; other than to assist a passenger 
or his or her bags into or out of the taxicab; or permitted any person other than the 
driver, and a passenger or passengers to remain in the taxicab at any such time; 
except a trainee, if a licensed taxicab driver; 

6. Refused to transport any orderly person upon request unless, in the case of a single 
taxicab business the taxicab is engaged, or in the case of a taxicab business 



Chapter 12 – Taxicab Ordinance 
Page 8 

 

operating more than one taxicab, all taxicabs operated by such business and then 
in service are engaged (if no taxicab is available at the time when a request for 
taxicab service is telephoned to a dispatch service, the dispatch service shall 
arrange with the caller for  transportation by the next available taxicab using such 
dispatch service unless the caller expressly declines to make such arrangement); 

7. Charged more than the maximum fare specified on the rate card displayed in the 
taxicab; 

8. Failed to notify the Clerk of any change of any material fact set forth in the 
application for such license; or 

9. Removed from a taxicab or obscured or caused to be removed from a taxicab or 
obscured the notice required by Section 12. 

B. Taxicab drivers licenses only.  In addition to the provisions of Subsection (A), a taxicab 
driver’s license may be suspended or revoked upon the determinations that the driver: 

1. Engaged in any loud argument, fight or other disturbance; harassed, threatened or 
assaulted another person; intentionally damaged, destroyed or threatened to 
damage or destroy any property; or in any other manner engaged in conduct 
detrimental to the orderly and efficient transportation of passengers. 

 

Maximum suspensions of taxicab driver’s licenses, under this section shall be as 
follows: 

5 days for the first violation; 14 days for the second violation within a one-year 
period.  Third violations shall result in revocation of the taxi driver’s license and 
may be the basis for further action with respect to the taxicab operator’s license. 

C. Taxicab operator’s licenses.  In addition to the provisions of Subsection (A), taxicab 
operator’s licenses shall be subject to suspension or revocation where it is determined that 
there have been repeated violations by the driver or drivers which resulted in four (4) or 
more suspensions for similar conduct by the same driver, or eight (8) or more suspensions 
by employees of the same person holding more than one taxicab operator’s license for 
similar conduct  establishing a pattern of conduct by the holder of the taxicab operator’s 
licenses. 

 

Section 22  Fee Schedule 

The following list of fees are set in compliance with this chapter: 

 Type           Fee 

1.   Taxicab Operator’s License     $100.00 

2.   Taxicab Driver’s License      $  25.00 

3.   Transfer Request      $    5.00 

 4.   Inspection Required by Section 15   $    5.00 and $25.00 
 

 

 

 

 



Chapter 12 – Taxicab Ordinance 
Page 9 

 

Section 23  Rate Schedule 

The following list of rates are set in compliance with this chapter: 

1. Base rate may be charged for any trip within the compact urban line, except the 
Airport, an additional fee of $1.00 per mile may be charged for trips outside the 
compact urban line. 

2. $1.50 may be charged for each additional passenger. 

3. Base rate may be charged for any trip to or from the Airport, inside the compact 
urban  line or from any hotel or motel in the City. 

4. Trunks may be charged for at a rate of $1.00. 

5. Waiting time may be charged at $ .35 per minute or $20.00 per hour. 

6. Charge for errands may be $1.00 over the cost of the fare. 

7. Charge for the delivery of groceries, parcels, etc. may be $1.00 over the fare. 

8. When used for sightseeing the fare may be $20.00 per hour, and $5.00 of every 
quarter hour thereafter. 

9. No fare may be collected for any child under the age of 10 years old, when 
accompanied by an adult. 

 

Section 24  Penalties 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, if found to have violated any provision of this 
chapter, taxicab operators may be fined up to $500.00 and taxicab drivers may be fined up to $50.00 
for any violations of this chapter or may also be charged criminally or civilly for any violations of 
this chapter that also constitute a violation of State law, but not both. 

 

Section 25  Sunset Provisions 

This Ordinance shall be in force for the term of four (4) years from its effective date.  This Ordinance 
shall become null and void upon the expiration of four (4) years from said effective date, unless 
recommended and required by the City Council to remain effective prior to such expiration date. 



 
 
 
Hello gentleman, 
 
I have spoken to a few of you concerning our taxi service situation in Presque Isle and would like 
to share this information with all of you in hopes that it can be resolved. 
 
I have been in business for 40 years in Presque Isle, 28 years at the Northeastland Hotel and I 
have never had to reach out for anything on a serious nature, but we have a situation that has 
been progressively getting worse and needs to be addressed. 
 
We have 4 certified taxi companies in town.  Jeff's taxi and Carney's taxi work when and if they 
want to and charge whatever they want to.  My understanding is that there is a set rate that taxis 
should be charging. 
Aroostook cab closes at 10:00 PM every night and Town taxi closes at midnight; they both 
correctly charge $8.00 per trip from the hotel to the airport.  The physical state of the taxis is 
awful, they are dirty and some smoke in them which can’t be legal as it is a public place. 
 
We advertise our international airport with hopes of increasing the number of people that come 
to Presque Isle, how does it look if the city can’t provide transportation? 
 
If a flight is late, we have nobody to pick them up, we have been paying people that we know to 
pick up the airline crew, that is a terrible business decision on our part for liability reasons.  
Last week we asked someone that we know to pick up the airline crew as it was late and the taxi 
services would not do it, not only did he deliver the crew to us but also an extra person who had 
no ride, 2 people to the Hampton, 1 person to the Sure Stay, and a woman to St. David.  They did 
not know what they were going to do and our guy volunteered to take them.  
 
If people want to go out on the town and try to get a cab home after midnight, there aren't 
any.  What do they do, drive while drinking?  In the winter they will not work during bad 
weather. 
 
My thoughts are that if they want to be in the transportation business, they need to be available at 
all times.  It’s no different than me having a night auditor on from 11:00 P.M. to 7:00 A.M., or 
the police and fire departments.  I understand that it’s hard to find people to work during the 
Covid but this has been an issue since before the Covid.  The standards of the vehicles and the 
employees that they hire must be improved it’s no different than every business in operation.  
People somehow believe that because it’s a “Taxi” we shouldn’t expect much.  I disagree. 
 
I received the attached email that from the management of CommutAir concerning the Taxi.  
I hope that a discussion can be scheduled to address this issue. 
 
Best regards 
Robin M. Doody 
 



 
 
 

CrewConneX  

A new feedback item has been submitted with a feedback number of #45497. The item is 
currently 'Assigned to Corporate'. Please log into the system to review notes that may be 
associated with this change. 
Customer Name:  CommutAir  Reservation #:   

Employee #:  1521  
Reservation 
Type:  

N/A  

Employee Email:    Location:  PQI  

Employee Name:  JAMES    Event Date:  07/25/2021  

Employee Position:  PIC  Supplier:  
The Northeastland 
Hotel  

Topic(s):  
Safety, Transport HTL-ARP, 
Transport ARP-HTL  

Supplier Type:  Hotel  

Room Number:  221  Flight #:   

Did you try to resolve the issue with 
the front desk/hotel manager?  

Yes, but they were unable to resolve the issue  

 

Comment created on 07/25/2021 13:00 CST by  JAMES   (Crew)  

The town taxi service is a safety hazard. Tires are bald. The inside of the car is almost a biohazard. 
Cigarettes and ashes. The most filthy vehicle I have ever been in.  

 

 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 15 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Schedule Public Hearing to adopt updates 
to the following building standards: Chapter 31 National 
Electrical Code & Chapter 38C Property Maintenance 

Code 
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) Memo from Penny Anderson, dated August 16, 2021 
2) Chapter 21 National Electrical Code 
3) Chapter 38C Property Maintenance Code 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to schedule a public hearing to adopt updates to 
the following building standards: Chapter 31 National 
Electrical Code & Chapter 38C Property Maintenance 
Code on September 29, 2021. 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                Presque Isle, ME 04769-2459               207-760-2703                    Fax 207-764-2501           
 

Planning and Development Department 
From the desk of: 

Penny Anderson 
Email:  panderson@presqueisleme.us 

 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

CC: Martin Puckett, City Manager, Chelsea Stratton, Executive Assistant,   
Galen Weibley, Director of Economic & Community Development, and Kim Finnemore, 
City Clerk 

DATE: August 16, 2021 

RE:  Update of National Electrical Ordinances & Property Maintenance Code  

  
Back in 2010 The Department of Public Safety adopted new building standards for the State of Maine and 
each community with a population of over 2,000 at that time had to adopt these building codes. 
 
The primary objective of the Board was to establish a uniform building code throughout the State of Maine 
and to maintain the Code consistent with the State’s interest as provided by 10 M.R.S. § 9721 et. seq. 
 
Every three (3) years the building standards are updated and adopted by the State of Maine this request is to 
have the wording changed in the following ordinances to reflect that the City of Presque Isle will adopt the 
most current State of Maine version of this code. 
 
The following codes to be updated are Chapter 31 National Electrical Code and Chapter 38C Property 
Maintenance Code.  (See Attached updates). 
 
Please add this to the agenda for the September 1, 2021 City Council meeting.   
 

RECOMMENDED:  Motion by Councilor                                                  , seconded 
by Councilor                                                     , to schedule a public hearing for 
September 29th, to update the following building standards:  Chapter 31 National 
Electrical Code and Chapter 38C Property Maintenance Code.   

 



NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE 
CHAPTER 31 

 
An Ordinance establishing minimum regulations governing the design, construction, alteration, 
enlargement, repair and maintenance of electrical wiring in all buildings and structures. Providing 
for the issuance of permits, collections of fees, making of inspections and providing penalties for 
the violation thereof; known as the National Electrical Code.  and repealing the existing Chapter 
31, National Electrical Code 2005 Edition of the City of Presque, State of Maine. 
 
 
PREAMBLE: This Ordinance is intended to replace and repeal all prior ordinance(s) dealing with 
any subject matter dealt with herein, and shall supersede the same, whether specifically repealed 
or referenced herein: 
 
Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Presque Isle as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. ADOPTION OF THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE 
 
That a certain document, three (3) copies of which are on file in the office of the City Clerk of the 
City of Presque Isle being marked and designated as the most current State of Maine adopted The 
National Electrical Code 2008 Edition, as published by the National Fire Protection Association 
and Chapter 120 “Electrical Installation Standards”; be and is hereby adopted as the Electrical 
Code of the City of Presque in the State of Maine; for the control of electrical wiring as, hereby, 
provided; and each and all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions and terms as said 
in the National Electrical Code and National Fire Protection standard # 70, are hereby referred to, 
adopted and made a part hereof as is fully set out in this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2. APPOINTMENT AND SALARY 
 
The Electrical Inspector shall be appointed by the City Council.  The Electrical Inspector shall 
receive a salary set by the same.  It shall be unlawful for the Electrical Inspector to engage in the 
business of the installation and the maintenance of electrical wiring, electric devices and electrical 
material either indirectly, or directly, and the Electrical Inspector should have no financial interest 
in any concern engaged in such business at any time while holding office of Electrical Inspector.  
Any violations of the provisions of this section by said Electrical Inspector shall be sufficient cause 
for the Electrical Inspector’s removal from office, but the Electrical Inspector may be removed by 
other just cause by the City Council. 
 
SECTION 3. ACCESS TO BUILDINGS 
 
Said Electrical Inspector shall have the right during reasonable hours to enter any building, in the 
process or erection or reconstruction or that is being rewired, in the discharge of the Electrical 
Inspector’s official duties, or for the purpose of making any inspection or test of the installation of 
electrical wiring, electrical devices or electric material contained therein.  In the case of new 
buildings, no power shall be turned on said building until the Electrical Inspector has issued a 
certificate of inspection.  In the case of reconstruction or rewiring, the Electrical Inspector shall 
have authority to cause the turning off of all electrical currents and cut or disconnect in cases of 
emergency, any wire where such electrical currents are dangerous to life or property or may 
interfere with the work of the fire department. 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Body Text



 
 
 
SECTION 4.  ALTERATIONS 
 
No alterations or additions shall be made in the existing wiring of any building, nor shall any 
building be wired for the placing of any electric lights, motor, heating devices, or any apparatus 
requiring the use of an electrical current, nor shall any alterations be made in the wiring of any 
building after inspection, without first notifying the Electrical Inspector and securing a permit 
therefore, except minor repair work, such as repairing flush and snap switches, replacing fuses, 
changing lamp sockets and receptacles, taping bare joints and repairing drop cords. 
 
SECTION 5. INSPECTIONS 
 
Upon the completion of the wiring of any building, it shall be the duty of the person, firm or 
corporation installing the same to notify the Electrical Inspector, who shall inspect the installation 
within one day of the time such notice is given when reasonably possible (excluding weekends and 
holidays); and if it is found to be fully in compliance with this Ordinance and does not constitute a 
hazard to life and property, he shall issue such person, firm or corporation for delivery to the owner, 
a certificate of inspection authorizing connection to the electrical service and the turning on of the 
current. 
 
SECTION 6. CONSTRUCTION REQURIEMENTS 
 
No certificate of inspection shall be issued unless the electrical light, power and heating 
installation are in strict conformity with the provisions of this Ordinance and the regulation as 
laid down in the 2008 Edition of the National Electrical Code.  These certificates shall show the fee 
charges by the Electrical Inspector, shall be made in duplicate, the original to be issued to the 
owner and the copy to be filed with the Code Enforcement Officer. 
 
SECTION 7. RECORD OF PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS 
 
The Electrical Inspector shall keep complete records of all permits issued and inspections made 
and other official work performed under the provisions of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 8. REVIEW 
 
When the Electrical Inspector condemns all or parts of any electrical installation, the owner within 
five days after receiving written notice from the Electrical Inspector, shall file a petition in writing 
for review of said action of the Electrical Inspector with the State Electrician’s Examining Board, 
asking them for a decision and their ruling upon the application, which ruling shall be final.  In 
case condemned parts do not constitute a menace of life and property or interfere with the work of 
the Fire Department; the Inspector may at his discretion, issue a temporary permit until said 
decision is made by the Office Insurance Commissioner State of Maine. 
 
SECTION 9. RESPONSIBILITY 
 
This Ordinance shall not be construed to relieve from or lessen the responsibility of any party 
owning, controlling, or installing any electrical wiring, electrical devices or electrical material for 
damages to person or property caused by any defect therein, nor shall be held as assuming any 
liability by reason of the inspection authorized herein, or certificate of inspection issued as herein 
provided. 
 
 



 
SECTION 10.  COST OF PERMIT 
 
Every application for a permit to do work regulated by this Ordinance shall state in writing on the 
application form provided for that purpose, the character or work proposed to be done and the 
amount and kind in connection therewith, together with such information, pertinent thereto as 
may be required. 
 
Such application shall pay for each permit issued at the time of issuance, a fee in accordance with 
the following schedule, and at the rate provided for each classification shown herein.accompanied 
by a fee, as may be established from time to time by the Presque Isle City Council.   
 
Any person who shall commence any work for which a permit is required by this Ordinance without 
first having obtained a permit therefor shall, if subsequently permitted to obtain a permit, shall 
pay double the permit fee fixed by this section for such work, provided, however, that this provision 
shall not apply to emergency work shown it shall be proved to the satisfaction of the Electrical 
Inspector that such work was urgently necessary and that is was not practical to obtain a permit 
therefor before the commencement of the work.  In all such cases a permit must be obtained as 
soon as practical to do so, and if there be a unreasonable delay in obtaining such permit, a double 
fee as herein provided shall be charged. 
 

Section 10: 
 
A. 1 and 3 Phase Through 800 Amperes        $50.00 ______ 
B. 801 – More          $75.00 ______ 
C. Panels Remote from Main Service      $ 8.00  ______ 
D. Receptacles, Switches, Fixtures, Electrical Heat Units,  

Permanent Connected Appliances              $ 0.75  ______ 
E. Transformers – Not Utility Owned: 

Vaults          $20.00 ______ 
1 – 25 KVA         $10.00 ______ 
25 – 200 KVA         $14.00 ______ 
Over 200 KVA         $20.00 ______ 

F. Outside Lighting and Sign       $  4.00 ______ 
G. Motors – Fractional        $  2.00 ______ 

Motors 1 HP and Larger        $  4.00 ______ 
Generators         $30.00 ______ 

H. Electrical Alarm Systems       $27.00 ______ 
I. Meter Sockets         $15.00 ______ 
 
MINIMUM PERMIT FEE        $50.00 ______ 
 

NO MINIMUM PERMIT FEE FOR A TEMPORARY SERVICE 
 
J. Temporary Service                  $25.00______ 
 
 
Upon written request the Council may waive local fees based on hardship for person(s) who require 
a permit for construction due to fire loss if they do NOT have insurance to cover the cost. 
 

Commented [PA1]: Delete  



 
SECTION 11. INCONSISTEN ORDINANCE REPEALED 
 
That Chapter 31 of the City of Presque Isle entitled National Electrical Code, 2008 Edition and all 
other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 12. SAVING CLAUSE 
 
That nothing in this Ordinance or in the National Electrical Code hereby adopted shall be 
constructed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or 
liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or ordinance 
hereby repealed as cited in Section 11 of this Ordinance; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy 
of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this Ordinance.  Should any part of this Ordinance 
or of the Code hereby adopted be declared invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance, or of the Code, 
shall not be affected thereby. 
 
SECTION 13. VIOLATIONS 
 
It shall be unlawful for an owner, tenant, an electrician, or any person to make alterations or 
additions to existing wiring or install new wiring for the placing of electrical lights, motors, heating 
devices, or any apparatus requiring the use of electric current at the location of any building or 
structure in violation of any provisions of this Code or to cause, permit or suffer any such violation 
to be committed.  Any such person shall be deemed guilty of a violation of this Ordinance and upon 
conviction shall be punished by a fine of not less than One hundred dollars ($100.00), or more than 
Twenty five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) for each provision of law thus violated.  It shall be the 
responsibility of the offender to abate the violation as expeditiously as possibly, and each day such 
violation is permitted to continue thereafter shall constitute a separate offense.  All fines collected 
hereunder shall inure to the City of Presque Isle. 
 
SECTION 14. DATE OF EFFECT 
 
That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance and cause the same to be 
published as required by law and this Ordinance shall take full force and effect after this date or 
final passage and approval. 
 
SECTION 15. SUNSET PROVISION 
 
This Ordinance shall be in force for the term of four (4) years from its effective date noted.  This 
Ordinance shall become null and void upon the expiration of four (4) years from said effective date: 
unless recommended and required by the City Council to remain effective prior to such expiration 
date. 
 
 
 



PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
 

CHAPTER 38C 
 
An Ordinance establishing the minimum regulations governing the conditions and 
maintenance of all property, building and structures; by providing the standards for 
supplies utilities and facilities and other physical things and conditions essential to 
ensure that structures are safe, sanitary and fit for occupation and use; and the 
condemnation of building and structures unfit for human occupancy and use and the 
demolition of such structures; known as the International Property Maintenance Code 
2003 Edition of the City of Presque Isle, State of Maine. 
 
PREAMBLE:  This Ordinance is intended to replace and repeal all prior ordinance(s) 
dealing with any subject matter dealt with herein, and shall supersede the same, 
whether specifically repealed or referenced herein: 
 
Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Presque Isle as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. ADOPTION OF THE LIFE SAFETY CODE 
 
That a certain document, three (3) copies of which are on file in the office of the City 
Clerk of the City of Presque Isle being marked and designated as The International 
Property Maintenance Code 2012 Edition, as published by the International Code 
Council, Inc. be and is hereby adopted as the International Property Maintenance 
Code of the City of Presque in the State of Maine; for the control of buildings and 
structures as hereby provided; and each and all of the regulations, provisions, 
penalties, conditions and terms as said in the International Property Maintenance 
Code, are hereby referred to, adopted and made a part hereof as is fully set out in this 
Ordinance, with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes, if any, prescribed in 
Section 3 of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2. INCONSISTENT ORDINANCE REPEALED 
 
That Chapter 38B of the City of Presque Isle entitled International Property 
Maintenance Code 2003 Edition and all other ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3. ADDITIONS, INSERTIONS, AND CHANGES 
 
That the following sections are hereby revised as follows: 
 
Section 101.1   (page 1, second line) Insert with the City of Presque Isle 
 
Section 102.3  (page 1, forth line) Delete and replace with: the International 

Building Code, the International Energy Code, International 
Fire Code, International Residential Code, the State of Maine 
Internal Plumbing Code, the State of Maine Subsurface Waste 
Water Disposal Rules, the 2008most current adopted State of 

Commented [PA1]: Change to 2012 

Commented [PA2]: Change to 2018 

Commented [PA3]: Change to 2012 



Maine National Electrical Code, and the NFPA 101 Life Safety 
Code 2009 Edition. 

Section 102.3  (page 1, ninth tenth line) Delete and replace with: The City of 
Presque Isle’s Land Use and Development Code. 

 
Section 103.5 (page 2) Delete 
 
Section 111.0  (page 6) Right of Appeals.  Delete and replace with Appeals of 

this Code shall be before the State of Maine Building Board of 
Appeals.  

 
Section 112.4  (page 7, fifth line) Insert with Fifty Dollars ($50.00) and One  
   Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150.00). 
 
Section 302.4  (page 11, third line) Insert with ten (10) inches. 
 
Section 304.14 (page 13, first line) Insert with June 1st to October 1st. 
 
Section 602.3  (page 2123, fifth line) Insert with year round. 
 
Section 602.3 (page 2123, Exception 1 seventh line) Delete and replace with 

the State of Maine Uniform Plumbing Code. 
 
Section 602.4  (page 2123, third line) Insert with year round. 
 
Section 604.2 (page 22, third line) Delete and replace with the most current 

adopted State of Maine  2008 National Electrical Code. 
 
Section 606.0  (page 22) Delete this section 
 
Section 702.2 (page 25, line two) Delete and replace with most current 

adopted State of Maine 2006 NFPA 101 Life Safety Code. 
 
Section 702.3 (page 25, line five) Delete and replace with 2006 NFPA 101 Life 

Safety Code. 
 
Section 704.2 (page 25, last line) Delete and replace with 2006 NFPA 101 Life 

Safety Code. 
 
 
SECTION 4. SAVING CLAUSE 
 
That nothing in this Ordinance or in The International Property Maintenance Code 
hereby adopted shall be constructed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any 
court, or any rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action 
acquired or existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 2 
of this Ordinance; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, 
impaired or affected by this Ordinance. 
 

Commented [PA4]: Remove 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Commented [PA5]: Delete 

Commented [PA6]: Delete 



 
SECTION 5. DATE OF EFFECT 
 
That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance and cause the same 
to be published as required by law and this Ordinance shall take full force and effect 
after this date or final passage and approval. 
 
SECTION 6. SUNSET PROVISION 
 
This Ordinance shall be in force for the term of four (4) years from its effective date 
noted.  This Ordinance shall become null and void upon the expiration of four (4) years 
from said effective date: unless recommended and required by the City Council to 
remain effective prior to such expiration date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 16 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Schedule Public Hearing for Dangerous 
Buildings 

 
INFORMATION 

 
1) Memo from George Howe, dated August 23, 2021 
2) Pictures 
3) State Statues 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to schedule a public hearing for dangerous 
buildings on November 3, 2021. 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                     Presque Isle, ME 04769              207-760-2770                    Fax 207-764-2501           
 

From the desk of: 
George Howe  

Email:  ghowe@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

CC: Martin Puckett, City Manager;  
Galen Weibley, Director of Economic & Community Development  
Kim Finnemore, City Clerk 
Chelsea Stratton, Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

DATE: August 23, 2021 

RE:  Recommendations on Dangerous Buildings   

  
The following structure has had code violations against it and is a safety hazard and our recommendation is to 
have it declared a dangerous building. 
 

1. 38 Elizabeth Street 
 
 
 

   

RECOMMENDED:   Motion made by: _________________ Seconded by: ___________________________ 
to schedule a Public Hearing for the November 3, 2021, City Council Meeting.   

mailto:ghowe@presqueisleme.us


   

 

   

 



   

 

   

 



   

 

   

 

 

 

 

 



 







PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 17 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Capital Improvement Plan  
 

INFORMATION 
 

 Information provided at meeting. 
  

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
 
Discussion only.  



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 18 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Five Year Fee Schedule 
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) Memo from Brad Turner, dated August  

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
 
Discussion only.  



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                Presque Isle, ME 04769-2459               207.760.2717                    Fax 207.764.2501           
 

Finance Department 
From the desk of: 
Bradley Turner 

Email:  bturner@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Presque Isle City Council 
FROM: Management Team 
DATE: July 28, 2021 
RE:  5 Year Forecast and Underlying Assumptions 

 
Attached is the Management Team’s proposed Five-Year Fee Schedule. Following are the 
underlying assumptions used in determining those proposed fees. 
 
Airport – All Fees except for the Landing Fee for the airline either cover or more than cover 
the costs associated with the service provided.  All other Fees except for the Taxi Fee are 
determined by comparing the Fees charged at other airports.  The Taxi Fee has been 
increased at a COLA since the current Director was employed. 
 
Fire Department --The department charges a fee for structure fires of $500.  Most insurance 
companies have this built into the home owner’s policy.  We bill the insurance company; if 
they do not pay we write the bill off. We never go to the homeowner for payment. 
 
The department bills businesses for false alarms after the 3rd false alarm in a calendar year.  
The fee encourages businesses to service and maintain their systems.  The amount charged 
is being reduced to reflect what other communities are currently charging.  
 
The department charges $25 for fire reports, usually requested by the insurance company.  
Charge covers time and expenses. 
 
Burn permits were initially issued as a method for the Fire Department to trouble shoot calls 
to the Fire Stations reporting a suspected fire.  It’s much less expensive to see if a permit was 
issued in the area and make a telephone call than to send out the Fire Truck.  Several years 
ago a small fee began to be charged as an additional source of revenue.  Beginning in 2018 
a similar fee is being charged for fireworks permits.   
 
For SCBA fills and top-offs (air bottles) the Fee charged is about all the market will bear, but 
does off-set some of the cost of maintaining the air compression system.  

 
Code Enforcement—Zoning Board of Appeals Fee covers the administrative costs including 
the required legal notice and the requirement by the Land Use of Development Code to notify 
all abutting property owners by Certified Mail. 
 



All Permit fees are similar to the fees charged by other communities in the area and State.  
The charge is meant to help cover the cost of inspections. 
 
Finance Department – Many of the Fees charged in the Tax and City Clerk’s Offices are set 
by the state.  Most of the other services are simply extensions of their current jobs and are 
meant to pay for the time and supplies used to provide that service by the clerk.   
 
In the case of Genealogy Research, due to privacy issues, the public can no longer do this 
research on their own.  The price charged is a compromise between providing a service to 
the public and recouping some of the cost of the Clerk’s time.    
 
Library – Most of the services offered are self-serve, therefore the fee is meant to cover the 
cost of the supplies used.  For non-residents, any student enrolled in MSAD #1 are exempt 
from fees.  To calculate a reasonable fee for other non-residents we calculated the cost of the 
library to the average taxpayer, and adjusted that to what we think the market would bear. 
The fees for passports are set by the State Department and the fingerprinting fees are 
determined by the government as we have no jurisdiction over changing them.   
 
Police Department     
Concerning the Accident Reports: 

• Use of Buycrash.com imposes no cost to the City/PD, therefore the fee more than 
pays for the services rendered.  The cost is almost always incurred by the involved 
parties insurance company(s) and since accident reports are, except in rare instances, 
generated exclusively for insurance purposes, it is reasonable for the City to recover 
costs for generating the report. 

• Not everyone has access to a computer so the PD permits walk-ins to request an 
accident report.  Pricing is set so as to encourage use of the website rather than 
tasking personnel to devote time to handling these records requests.  Pricing is 
consistent with previous years.   

 
Concerning Bank Alarms: 
PIPD has so few false bank alarms that this category is almost obsolete, however in the 
event of a false alarm, the set amount covers the cost of the PIPD’s response and adequately 
provides incentive for banks to properly train their personnel on the alarm usage at their 
branches keeping these incidents low in number.  
 
Concerning Public Records Requests: 
The PIPDI declines to charge victims of crime for a copy of the police report relative to their 
victimization; all others are billed identical to the walk-in accident reports listed above with the 
exception of requests which are time intensive to fulfill.  For instance, we get requests for 
audio & video recordings where specific dates, times, or both are unknown to the requester.  
This then requires staff to research, often times voluminous amounts of information, in order 
to satisfy the public records request.  Under circumstances such as this, the PIPD and the 
person making the request will agree on an estimated amount of time necessary to fulfill the 
request and the requester will be billed at the listed hourly rate.  If items such as CD’s or 
DVD’s are necessary, the PIPD further requests those items to be delivered to the PD for use 
in providing the requested documentation.   
 
Recreation and Parks most of these fees have been adjusted to reflect changes in services 
and costs since the Sargent Community Center has been completed. Program fees and labor 
services have been adjusted to account for the minimum wage increases. 



AIRPORT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

SERVICE

Landing Fees $1.80 $1.85 $1.85 $1.90 $1.90
(per 1,000 lb. MLW)

Landing Fees $1,521.00 $1,521.00 $1,550.00 $1,550.00 $1,550.00
(per Landing)
For Airline ERJ-145only

Airport Parking Fee $8.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00
Bangor - $10/day

Portland - $12/day

Fredericton, NB - $12/day Can. $9.18/day US

Moncton, NB - $16/day Can. $12.24/day US

Fuel Flow Fee $0.07 $0.07 $0.07 $0.08 $0.08
($/gallon)

Taxi Fee $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $525.00 $525.00



FIRE DEPARTMENT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

Fire Department 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

SERVICE

* False Alarms 200.00$   200.00$   200.00$   200.00$   250.00$     

** Structure Fires 500.00$   500.00$   500.00$   500.00$   550.00$     

** Extrication/Jaws 575.00$   575.00$   575.00$   575.00$   600.00$     

Fire Reports 25.00$     25.00$     25.00$     25.00$     25.00$       

SCBA Fills 7.00$       7.00$       7.00$       7.00$       7.00$         

SCBA Top Off 5.00$       5.00$       5.00$       5.00$       5.00$         

Scuba Tank Fills 7.00$       7.00$       7.00$       7.00$       7.00$         

Scuba Tank Top Off 5.00$       5.00$       5.00$       5.00$       5.00$         

Burn Permits 10.00$     10.00$     10.00$     10.00$     10.00$       

10.00$     10.00$     10.00$     10.00$     10.00$       

300.00$     

* False Alarms -- Businesses are allowed three (3) false alarms per calendar year.
After 3 they will be billed for each additional call.

** Extrication/Jaws and Structure fire fee's are billed to the insurance company.
Home-owners are not responsible for payment if the insurance company refuses payment.

Fireworks Permits

ALS Intercepts  EMS



DEPT OF ECONOMIC COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Code Enforcement

Zoning Board $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 100.00$   100.00$   

Building Permit Minimum Fee $35.00 35.00$     $35.00 35.00$     35.00$     
Additional Fee Residential -- $5.00 per thousand of Construction Cost
Additional Fee Commerical -- $8.00 per thousand of Construction Cost

Demolition
Residential Fee $30.00 30.00$     $30.00 30.00$     30.00$     
Commercial Fee $100.00 100.00$   $100.00 100.00$   100.00$     

Electrical -- Minimum Fee $50.00 50.00$     $50.00 50.00$     50.00$     

Internal Plumbing and Septic is Regulated by the State of Maine

Certificate of Occupancy $25.00 25.00$     $25.00 25.00$     25.00$       

Sign Fee $2.50 $2.50 $2.50 2.50$       2.50$         

(per square foot)

Marijuana Application Fee 500.00$   500.00$   500.00$   500.00$   500.00$   

Proposed - Request to rezone property $200.00 



FINANCE DEPARTMENT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

City Clerk/Tax Office Fees 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Uncertified Vital Records: $8.00 $8.00 $9.00 $9.00 $10.00
Any additional copies at time of request $4.00 $4.00 $5.00 $5.00 $6.00

Notary Service
First signature: $10.00 $10.00 $11.00 $11.00 $12.00
Second Signature (Page) $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00
Third Signature (Page) $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00

$20.00 $20.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00

Marriages (performed at City Hall $105.00 $110.00 $125.00 $125.00 $130.00
  during regular hours)

Photocopies
8.5" x 11" $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50
8.5" x 14" $0.65 $0.65 $0.65 $0.65 $0.65
11" x 14" $0.75 $0.75 $0.75 $0.75 $0.75
Tax Maps $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00

Lamination
1/4 sheet: $5.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00
1/2 sheet: $4.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $7.00
Full sheet: $8.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $11.00

Voter Registration Lists -- Limited to qualified 
Political Party by request only: 1 free/year 1 free/year 1 free/year 1 free/year 1 free/year
1st Page $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00
Additional Pages $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.25
CD/Disc $22.00 $22.00 $22.00 $22.00 $22.00

*** (Set by the State)
Fax Fee

1st Page $8.00 $9.00 $9.00 $10.00 $11.00
Add'l Pages $5.00 $6.00 $6.00 $7.00 $8.00

Research:
Lien Releases/Deeds/Title Related Documents

Per page $10.00 $12.00 $15.00 $15.00 $15.00
Vital Records

1st 15 minutes free
Per record (half hour increments) $6.00 $7.00 $7.00 $8.00 $9.00

Genealogy Research
1st half hour free
Additional time in half hour increments $20.00 $25.00 $25.00 $30.00 $35.00

Trio Tax Service Extract $55.00 $60.00 $60.00 $65.00 $70.00

Verification Fee to Veternary Office
Per Dog $5.00 $7.00 $8.00 $8.00 $10.00

$105.00 $110.00 $115.00 $120.00 $125.00

Dedimus Justice Service

Public Hearing Fee

Also, City Ordinance, Chapter 9 needs to be updated to reflect an increase in publication fees.



TURNER MEMORIAL LIBRARY
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Fax Service
(Incoming and sending per page) $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00

Computer Printing $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.25
(Per Page)

Research Services (consistent with City fees) $30.00 $40.00 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00

Inter-Library Loan $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
(To help defray return postal costs,
 flat fee per request)

Non-Resident Borrowers Membership
* Annual Family Membership:  $55.00 (price effective 1/1/2017) $55.00
* Annual Individual Membership:  $46.00. $45.00
* 3-Month Individual Membership:  $12.00. $15.00

* Fee is waived for University of Presque Isle and Northern Maine Community College students
with valid, current university or community college issued I.D.

* Fee is waived for students enrolled or eligible for enrollment in S.A.D. #1 schools.

Conference Room $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs

Meeting Rooms Varies according to room. 
Conference Room Gallery (Capacity - 82) $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs
Teen Lounge Conf. Room (Capicity 5-6) $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs
Reference Area (Capacity - 15) $50/3 hrs $50/3 hrs $50/3 hrs $50/3 hrs $50/3 hrs
Mezzanine Meeting Room (Capicity 4-5) $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs

* Reduced rates for Not-For-Profit Organizations. 

Replacement for Lost or Stolen Card $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00

Home Delivery Charge (per delivery) $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00

Speaker's Fee or Honorarium $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00



TURNER MEMORIAL LIBRARY
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

Color Copies:
Single Copies $0.80 $0.80 $0.80 $0.80 $0.80
10 - 49 Copies $0.70 $0.70 $0.70 $0.70 $0.70
50-99 Copies $0.60 $0.60 $0.60 $0.60 $0.60
100+ Copies $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50

Single Copies $1.70 $1.70 $1.70 $1.70 $1.70
10 - 49 Copies $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50
50-99 Copies $1.30 $1.30 $1.30 $1.30 $1.30
100+ Copies $1.20 $1.20 $1.20 $1.20 $1.20

Black Copies:
Single Copies $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20
10 - 49 Copies $0.15 $0.15 $0.15 $0.15 $0.15
50-99 Copies $0.10 $0.10 $0.10 $0.10 $0.10
100+ Copies $0.05 $0.05 $0.05 $0.05 $0.05

Single Copies $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50
10 - 49 Copies $0.30 $0.30 $0.30 $0.30 $0.30
50-99 Copies $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20
100+ Copies $0.10 $0.10 $0.10 $0.10 $0.10

11 X 17

Letter & Legal

Letter & Legal

11 X 17



POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

SERVICE

Accident Reports
$20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00

Requests made through PIPD
***Single Page*** $13.00 $13.00 $13.00 $13.00 $13.00

***Per page thereafter*** $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00

5 - 15 (Each) $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00
Over 15 (Each) $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00

Public Records Requests:
Police Report -- Victim Copy Free Free Free Free Free
Police Report -- Non- Victim Copy First 3 pages $13.00 $13.00 $13.00 $13.00 $13.00
Per page thereafter $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00

$25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00

or copies, substantial research and/or time to
complete shall be billed at the following
hourly rate in addition to the police report
and subsequent "per page" costs.
***These costs to be agreed upon prior to work commencing***

Bank Alarms:  (false)

     Buycrash.com

(Typical accident is 3 pages or $21.00)

DVDs, thumb drives, other recording media,
Requests requiring digital media recordings,

We rarely have more than 5, but will keep fee in case.



Presque Isle Recreation Parks
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Programs Resident/Non-Resident $25 $30 $30 $35 $35 Del. Non/Res

Sargent Family Community Center
Facility Profit/Non-Profit

1/2 Gym per hour $30/$23 $30/$23 $30/$23 $30/$23 $30/$23

Full Gym per hour $50/$38 $50/$38 $50/$38 $50/$38 $50/$38

Gym & Track per hour $75/$56 $75/$56 $75/$56 $75/$56 $75/$56

Multi-Purpose Room

1st two hours $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30

each additional hour $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15

Senior Center & Kitchen

1st hour $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30

each additional hour $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15

Complete Facility $1,250 $1,250 $1,350 $1,450 1500 New Item

Staffing/Labor

Laborers $40 $42 $45 $45 $50

Attendants $22 $23 $25 $25 $27

Equipment

Chairs (folding) each per day $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50

Tables each per day $10 $10 $10 $10 $10

Pipe & Drape Partitions $2.00 per foot $2.00 per foot 2.50 per foot 2.50 per foot 2.50 per foot

Floor Cover

50' x 70' per day $350 $350 $350 $400 $400

90' x 130' per day $550 $550 $550 $600 $600

Scoreboard $50 $50 $50 $50 $50

Volleyball Standards $50 $50 $50 $50 $50

Gym Mats per mat $10 $10 $10 $10 $10

Soft Play Equipment per piece $5 $5 $5 $5 $5

Mantle Lake Park Kitchen Pavilion
1st three hours $75 $100 $100 $100 $100

each additional hour $20 $25 $25 $30 $30

The Forum
Facility

Facility Rental per day $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500

Facility Fee 12% 12% 12% 12% 12%

Advertising

3' x 4' Annual $250 $300 $300 $300 $300

4' x 8' Annual $500 $500 $500 $500 $500

Hockey Boards $800 $800 $900 $900 $1,000

Zamboni per Side - Wrap Machine $750 - $2500 $750 - $2500 $750 - $2500 $750 - $2500 $750 - $2500

Box Office per week $400 $400 $400 $400 $400



Presque Isle Recreation Parks
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
The Forum

Staffing/Labor

Maintenance per hour $40 $45 $45 $50 $50

Janitorial per hour $30 $32 $35 $37 $37

Ticket Sellers/Takers per hour $22 $22 $22 $25 $25

Parking Lot Attendants per hour $22 $22 $22 $25 $25

Ushers/Usherettes per hour $22 $22 $22 $25 $25

House Security per hour $40 $40 $40 $45 $45

Spot Light Operators per hour $40 $40 $40 $45 $45

Stage Hands per hour $40 $40 $40 $45 $45

Electrician per hour weekdays $75 $85 $85 $90 $90

Electrician per hour weekends $90 $100 $100 $110 $110

Equipment

Chairs (folding) each per day $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.75

Tables (5' or 8') each per day $10 $10 $10 $10 $12

Round Tables 72'' $12 $12 $12 $12 $15 New Item

Pipe & Drape Partitions $2.00 $2.00 $2.50 $2.50 $2.50

House PA System per day $220 $220 $220 $220 $220

Portable PA System per day $200 $200 $200 $200 $200

Stage (Small) per day $300 $325 $325 $350 $350

Stage (Large) per day $600 $650 $650 $700 $700

Sound Wings per day $150 $175 $175 $200 $200

Canopy per day $150 $150 $175 $175 $175

Spot Platforms per day

5x8x5 $55 $55 $65 $65 $70

8x8x5 $60 $60 $70 $70 $75

5x8x10 $90 $90 $100 $100 110

8x8x10 $100 $100 $110 $110 $120

8x8x15 $150 $150 $160 $160 $170

Forklift w/operator per hour $150 $150 $155 $160 $165

Scissor Lift w/operator per hour $150 $150 $155 $160 $165

Trailer Hookup per unit per day $24 $24 $30 $30 $35

Ice Season

Ice Rates per hour

Hours 1-100 $175 $185 $200 $225 $235

Hours 101-200 $135 $155 $155 $155 Rec. Deleting

Hours >200 $115 $135 $135 $135 Rec. Deleting

Off peak $100 $125 $135 $145 $155

Public Skating

Adult $5 $5 $5 $5 $7

Child $5 $5 $5 $5 $7

Senior $5 $5 $5 $5 $7

Ice Skates

Rental $2 $2 $3 $3 $3

Sharpening $7 $7 $8 $8 $8



Presque Isle Recreation Parks
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Riverside Gazebo

Per Day (In Season) $50 $50 $75 $75 $75

Riverside Pavillion
Per Day $100.00 $100 $100 $100 $100

Per Week $250.00 $250 $250 $250 $250



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 1, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM # EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

SUBJECT 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(C) to 
discuss Real Estate 

  
INFORMATION 

 
  

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded by 
Councilor __________ to enter into Executive Session pursuant 
to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(C) to discuss Real Estate matter. 



 
 

PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
Wednesday, September 1, 2021 

  
• We still have Board/Committee openings if anyone has any 

interest in joining a Board or Committee please see the City 
Clerk or apply online. 

• The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Presque Isle 
City Council is on Wednesday, September 29, 2021 at 6:00 
PM in the Sargent Family Community Center 
 
 


	September 1, 2021 Agenda
	cover memo 9.1.21
	Agenda Item 1
	Application
	PHN Marijuana License Chad Junkins
	Agenda Item 2
	Stone Ridge Special Amusement Application
	State of Defiiencies and Plan of Corrections
	PHN StoneRidge Special Permit
	Agenda Item 3
	UMPI Liquor Application
	PHN Sodexo Liquor License
	Agenda Item 4
	UMPI Special Permit App
	PHN UMPI Special Permit
	Agenda Item 5
	Jalbert Application
	PHN Jalbert Automobile Graveyard Aug. 25
	Agenda Item 6
	Cowetts Application
	Presque Isle, Public Hearing, Jalbert,  SH, Aug. 25
	Agenda Item 7
	Minutes 7-15-21
	Planning Board Members Present: Bruce Roope, Chairman; Ward Gerow, Vice-Chairman; Jayne Farrin, Brandon McDonald, Sean Nordenhold, Travis Ouellette (Arrived at 6:04 PM), & David Perry
	City Councilors Present: Kevin Freeman, Chairman; Jacob Shaw, Deputy Chairman; Mike Chasse, Doug Cyr (Arrived at 6:02 PM), Craig Green
	Councilors Absent: Randy Smith
	Others Present: Galen Weibley, Director of Economic & Community Development; George Howe, Code Enforcement Officer; Martin Puckett, City Manager; Clint Deschene, IgnitePI; twenty-six residents in the audience
	6. Adjournment
	Planning Board Members

	CC August 4, 2021 Minutes
	Agenda Item 8
	For:
	AGENDA ITEM # 8
	INFORMATION
	REQUESTED ACTION

	Agenda Item 9
	Housing Authority Recommendation
	Agenda Item 10
	Transfer Consent - Ares Rattray
	Transfer Consent - Jeffrey Lausier
	Transfer Consent - Kiley Pelletier
	Agenda Item 11
	MEMO Downtown TIF Advisory Committee Appointment
	Agenda Item 12
	Agenda Item 13
	2022 Budget Calendar
	Agenda Item 14
	Ride Hailing Regulations Memo
	Concession Agreement Memo
	Courtesy Vehicle Agreement
	Taxi cab violations 8.25.21
	CHAPTER 12 Taxicabs 01.08.2020
	Complaint Letter
	Agenda Item 15
	Council Motion Electrical - Property Maintenance Ordinances 2021. Schedule Public Hearing
	NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE.Proposed 2019
	SECTION 1. ADOPTION OF THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE
	SECTION 2. APPOINTMENT AND SALARY
	SECTION 3. ACCESS TO BUILDINGS
	SECTION 5. INSPECTIONS
	SECTION 6. CONSTRUCTION REQURIEMENTS
	SECTION 7. RECORD OF PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS
	SECTION 8. REVIEW
	SECTION 9. RESPONSIBILITY
	SECTION 10.  COST OF PERMIT
	Generators         $30.00 ______
	NO MINIMUM PERMIT FEE FOR A TEMPORARY SERVICE

	SECTION 11. INCONSISTEN ORDINANCE REPEALED
	SECTION 12. SAVING CLAUSE
	SECTION 13. VIOLATIONS
	SECTION 14. DATE OF EFFECT
	SECTION 15. SUNSET PROVISION

	PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE.2018 Update
	SECTION 1. ADOPTION OF THE LIFE SAFETY CODE
	SECTION 2. INCONSISTENT ORDINANCE REPEALED
	SECTION 3. ADDITIONS, INSERTIONS, AND CHANGES
	SECTION 4. SAVING CLAUSE
	SECTION 5. DATE OF EFFECT
	SECTION 6. SUNSET PROVISION

	Agenda Item 16
	Motion.Schedule Public Hearing.9-1-21
	Pictures 38 Elizabeth St
	State Statutes
	Agenda Item 17
	Agenda Item 18
	5 Year fee Schedule 2021 packet
	Updated Memo 2021
	Airport
	Fire
	Code
	Finance
	Library
	Police
	Rec

	Executive Session
	Annoucements

